
1

Agenda

Oxfordshire Growth Board Scrutiny Panel
Thursday 30 May 2019 at 6.30 pm
Old Library, Oxford Town Hall, OX1 1BX
From 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019, the Oxfordshire Growth Board meetings are managed 
by South Oxfordshire District Council.
Contact: Kevin Jacob, Growth Board Democratic Services Officer 01235 422191
E-mail: democratic.services@oxfordshiregrowthboard.org
Telephone: 01235 422191
Website: www.oxfordshiregrowthboard.org 

Voting members

Councillor Andrew Gant (Chair)
Councillor John Tanner 
Councillor Craig Simmons

Oxford City Council 

Councillor Tom Wallis
Councillor Lucinda Wing
Councillor Sean Woodcock (Vice-Chair)

Cherwell District Council 

Councillor Nick Carter
Councillor Damian Haywood
Councillor Richard Webber

Oxfordshire County Council 

Councillor Peter Dragonetti
Councillor Anne-Marie Simpson
Councillor David Bretherton 

South Oxfordshire District 
Council 

Councillor Andy Cooke
Councillor Hayleigh Gascoigne
Councillor Matt Barber

Vale of White Horse District 
Council

Councillor Derek Cotterill 
Councillor Ted Fenton
Councillor Julian Cooper

West Oxfordshire District 
Council 

The quorum is six members, one from each council. Substitutes are allowed and should be 
notified to the contact above. 

This meeting is open to the press and public.

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record the meeting please let the contact officer 
know in advance of this meeting.  

Public Document Pack

mailto:democratic.services@oxfordshiregrowthboard.org
http://www.oxfordshiregrowthboard.org/


2

AGENDA

PART ONE – PUBLIC BUSINESS

1 Election of Chair of the Scrutiny Panel for 2019/2020  

Purpose: To elect a Chairman of the Scrutiny Panel for the 2019/2020 council year. 

2 Election of Vice-Chair of the Scrutiny Panel for 2019/2020  

Purpose: To elect a Vice-Chair of the Panel of the Panel for the 2019/2020 council year. 

3 Apologies for absence and substitutes; declarations of interest; 
Chair's announcements  

4 Minutes of the previous meeting  (Pages 7 - 17)

Recommendation: To approve the minutes of the previous meeting held on 21 March 
2019, (attached). 

5 Public participation  

The terms of reference of the Panel state:

Members of the public may address meetings of the Scrutiny Panel, where notice is given 
to the secretariat no later than 4.00pm on the last working day before the day of the 
meeting.

The Chair will have discretion to manage the public participation procedure as they see 
appropriate, including rejecting frivolous, defamatory or offensive questions and 
managing the time afforded to public addresses.

Notice of a wish to address the meeting, including the subject of the address or the full 
question to be asked, must be sent to democratic.services@oxfordshiregrowthboard.org 
by 4.00pm on Wednesday 29 May 2019.

The Chair’s decision will be final.

6 Introduction to the work of the Oxfordshire Local Enterprise 
Partnership, (OxLEP) as part of the Growth Board  

Purpose: To receive a presentation from Nigel Tipple, Chief Executive of the OxLEP on 
its work as part of the Growth Board. 

mailto:democratic.services@oxfordshiregrowthboard.org


3

7 Oxfordshire's Affordable Housing Potential - secured through 
planning policy  (Pages 18 - 19)

Purpose: The Panel its March meeting requested an update for the projected rates of 
Growth Deal affordable housing. (To follow). 

Recommendation: To consider and discuss the update. 

8 Oxfordshire Green Belt Update  (Page 20)

Purpose: To consider the update to the map of the Green Belt as requested at its March 
meeting to include sites already developed or allocated. 

Recommendation: To discuss the updated map. 

9 Growth Deal Infrastructure Programme  (Pages 21 - 28)

Purpose: To introduce the Scrutiny Panel to the Growth Deal Infrastructure Workstream 
and consider how to address some of the key issues in building a successful programme. 

10 Response to Scrutiny Panel request in relation to air quality and 
climate change in the Oxfordshire Plan 2050  (Page 29)

Purpose: To report the response to the Scrutiny Panel’s request in relation to air quality 
and climate change in the Oxfordshire Plan 2050.

Recommendation: To considered and discuss the report. 

11 Growth Board response to Growth Board Scrutiny Panel 
recommendations - March 2019 Meeting  (Pages 30 - 32)

Purpose: To consider the Growth Board’s response to the recommendations to the 
Board from the Scrutiny Panel meeting on 21 March 2019. 

Information:  response attached 

Recommendation: To discuss and note the response.

12 Oxfordshire Growth Board Papers 4 June 2019  

Purpose: To consider reports and matters on the agenda for the Oxfordshire Growth 
Board meeting on 4 June 2019. 

Information: Agenda and reports published on 24 May 2019. Separately from this 

http://democratic.southoxon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=330&MId=2323


4

Agenda. 

Recommendations: To make any recommendations or comments to the Growth Board.

13 Work Programme for the Scrutiny Panel - May 2019  (Pages 33 - 34)

Purpose: To discuss the draft work programme for the Panel submitted for consideration 
by the Panel’s scrutiny officer.  

Information: Work programme (attached)

Recommendation: To agree the draft work programme as set out and to note that other 
relevant items may be added to agendas at the request of officers or the Chair.

14 Dates of meetings  

Purpose: To note the dates for meetings of this Panel:

Scrutiny Panel Growth Board
Thurs 25 July 6.30pm Tues 30 July 2pm
Thurs 19 Sept 6.30pm Tues 24 Sept 2pm
Thurs 21 Nov 6.30pm Tues 26 Nov 2pm
Thurs 23 Jan 6.30pm Tues 28 Jan 2pm
Thurs 26 March 6.30pm Tues 31 March 2pm
Thurs 28 May 6.30pm Tues 2 June 2pm

Meetings of the scrutiny panel to be held in Oxford Town Hall. 

http://democratic.southoxon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=330&MId=2323


5

Councillors’ duties on declaring interests

General duty
You must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests when the meeting reaches the item 
on the agenda headed “Declarations of Interest” or as soon as it becomes apparent to you. 

What is a disclosable pecuniary interest? 
Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to your* employment; sponsorship (ie payment for 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out your duties as a councillor or towards your 
election expenses); contracts; land in the council’s area; licences for land in the council’s 
area; corporate tenancies; and securities.  These declarations must be recorded in each 
councillor’s register of interests which is publicly available on the council’s website. 

Declaring an interest 
Where any matter disclosed in your register of interests is being considered at a meeting, 
you must declare that you have an interest.  You should also disclose the nature as well as 
the existence of the interest.  If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, after having 
declared it at the meeting you must not participate in discussion or voting on the item and 
must withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is discussed. 

Member’s Code of Conduct and public perception 
Even if you do not have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter, the Councillors’ Code 
of Conduct says that a member “must serve only the public interest and must never 
improperly confer an advantage or disadvantage on any person including yourself” and 
that “you must not place yourself in situations where your honesty and integrity may be 
questioned”.  What this means is that the matter of interests must be viewed within the 
context of the code as a whole and regard should continue to be paid to the perception of 
the public. 

*Disclosable pecuniary interests that must be declared are not only those of the member her or himself but 
also those of the member’s spouse, civil partner or person they are living with as husband or wife or as if 
they were civil partners.  



6



1

Minutes
OF A MEETING OF THE

Oxfordshire Growth Board Scrutiny 
Panel

HELD ON THURSDAY 21 MARCH 2019 AT 6.30 PM
OLD LIBRARY, OXFORD TOWN HALL OX1 1BX

Present:

Councillor Neil Prestidge Cherwell District Council 
Councillor Andrew Gant (Chair)
Councillor Craig Simmons
Councillor John Tanner 

Oxford City Council
Oxford City Council 
Oxford City Council 

Councillor John Sanders
Councillor Emily Smith 

Oxfordshire County Council 
Oxfordshire County Council

Councillor David Turner
Councillor Elaine Hornsby 
Councillor Ian White

South Oxfordshire District Council 
South Oxfordshire District Council
South Oxfordshire District Council  

Councillor Sandy Lovatt Vale of White Horse District Council
Councillor Derek Cotterill
Councillor Julian Cooper 

West Oxfordshire District Council
West Oxfordshire District Council  

Officers contributing to and supporting Panel: 

Andrew Down Acting Deputy Chief Executive - Partnership and Planning South 
Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils

Giles Hughes Head of Planning and Strategic Housing, West Oxfordshire 
District Council

Amit Alva Oxfordshire Growth Board – Project and Scrutiny Officer 
Kevin Jacob Oxfordshire Growth Board – Democratic Services Officer

30 Apologies for absence and substitutes; declarations of interest; 
Chair's announcements 

Apologies were received from:

Councillor Ben Mabbett, Vale of the White Horse District Council  
Councillor Nick Carter, Oxfordshire County Council 
Councillor Sean Gaul, Cherwell District Council 
Councillor Debby Hallett, Vale of the White Horse District Council 
Councillor Chris Palmer, Vale of White Horse District Council, (substituted by Councillor 
Sandy Lovatt) 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



2

Councillor Sean Woodcock, Cherwell District Council

At this point it was noted that the meeting was not quorate as a member from Cherwell 
District Council was not present.  It was agreed that the meeting would continue informally 
until quorate which occurred at 18:45. 

There were no declarations of interest. 

31 Minutes of the previous meeting 

This item was taken after the public participation item when the meeting becoming 
quorate. 

The minutes of the meeting held on 24 January 2019 were approved as a correct record of 
the meeting. 

32 Public Participation 

The Panel heard two questions and one statement from members of the public. 

Dr Eugenie Buchan representing Elsfield Residents Group, asked the following questions:

‘Tonight, the Scrutiny Panel is looking at a proposal to commission a new review of the 
Oxford Green Belt. According to the text, you will carry out the assessment 'in a holistic 
manner alongside the development of a strategic framework for growth up to 2050: it will 
‘inform decision making and outline a Green Belt appropriate for the mid-21st Century'.

It is logical for the Growth Board to be pre-occupied with growth. And indeed, in this 
consultation, nearly all the topic papers including the Sustainability Appraisal Scoping 
Report, stress the growth ambitions of Local Plan 2050, not least the goal of building, by 
the mid-2030s, a hundred thousand new homes with required infrastructure and 
motorways to support even more housing, if the Oxford-Cambridge Expressway goes 
ahead.

But the purpose of our planning system is not to promote growth per se, but to contribute 
to the achievement of sustainability which, traditionally is defined as ‘meeting the needs of 
the present without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own 
needs’.  

 For future generations the greatest challenge will be Climate Change and its rate of 
change is accelerating. On Tuesday the head of the Environment Agency, a seasoned 
diplomat who has been trained to measure his words, warned that the country could run 
out of water within 25 years and that England would reach the "jaws of death - the point at 
which, unless we take action to change things, we will not have enough water to supply 
our needs".

What would be the point of planning for a hundred thousand new houses in Oxfordshire if 
we do not have enough water and other natural resources to sustain them through to the 
end of the century? 

 So I have three inter-related questions about the purpose of Local Plan 2050 and the 
Green Belt Review:

Page 8

Agenda Item 4



3

 
a) It seems to me that the primary purpose of your Green Belt review is to assess how 

much of it can be urbanised. But in light of climate change, do you agree/disagree 
that we need to rethink the function of green belts?  For example, would your 
review and the Sustainability Appraisal score the five functions of the Green Belt in 
terms of capacity to protect biodiversity, a carbon neutral economy, air quality and 
water conservation?

b) Do you agree/disagree that LP 2050 needs to prioritise Climate Change rather than 
‘growth’ in order to deliver long term sustainability in Oxfordshire?

c) Do you agree/disagree that to counter the threat of Climate Change, local 
authorities need to come together both to lobby central government and formulate 
specific measures to incentivise resource conservation, restoration of degraded 
ecosystems and rapid transition to a zero-carbon emission economy? 

I trust that the Growth Board and the District Councils recognise the urgency of Climate 
Change and the central part that the Green Belt can and does play in mitigating it. In 
response to the current consultation, I count on you and your consultants to develop a 
strategic framework that puts at the top of the agenda the need to tackle Climate Change 
and to deliver Sustainability for the 21st century.’

Dr Peter Collins, representing the Campaign for the Protection of Rural England, (CPRE) 
gave the following statement:

‘This addresses CPRE’s concerns over the processes and timetabling of the Panel’s 
relationship to the Growth Board, the insufficiencies of the Board in dealing with request 
from the Panel and the paper on the Panel’s Agenda to-day, entitled ‘Oxfordshire Plan 
2050 – Green Belt’.
1.  CPRE continues to support the Panel’s important task of holding the Growth Board to 

account at this crucial time when the Board’s future activities and arrangements are 
under discussion and the Board is pushing on at such a rate that checking that its 
activities are in line with the democratic processes it should espouse is particularly 
difficult for District Councillors, let alone the general public, to follow.  The timetabling 
of the Panel’s meetings, only a few days before Growth Board meetings, must make it 
hard for considered papers to be prepared by the Panel for the Board’s detailed 
discussion.  CPRE advocates that the Panel review its timetable for meetings, to give 
itself more time to present considered documents to the Board which the Board would 
find it hard to avoid proper responses.  A subcommittee could be appointed to deal 
with matters of unexpected urgency.  The volume of business is so great at present 
that the Panel could consider more frequent meetings.  Otherwise, discussion of topics 
will continue to be limited by the time constraint of two hours’ meeting duration.

2. CPRE is disappointed at the Board’s poor response to the Panel’s proposal that it 
‘create a separate list of key consultees within the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 (JSSP) 
consultation process, CPRE to be added to this list of key consultees.  We all know 
that there is a ‘wider consultation list including CPRE’ – but we also know that this will 
not guarantee that the Board will consult crucial stakeholders in timely fashion in 
respect of all matters in which they are expert.  CPRE and all matters of planning are 
inextricably linked. The Panel is asked to pursue the matter energetically with the 
Board.

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



4

3. Although all matters raised with the Panel at its last meeting were greeted 
enthusiastically by the Panel, for which CPRE is most grateful, it appears that the 
second matter we raised has not been pursued with the Board; namely, our 
recommendation that ‘a clear priority be given for really affordable living 
accommodation, with suitable density and sustainability, over provision for 
employment on all brownfield land.’  I remind the Panel that we accepted that ‘current 
local plans can trump some of this, but it (our proposal) should be written in stone now 
from when the local plans come to an end, and the City and District Councils be asked 
to agree to seek to implement it as far as possible from now on’.  This is surely 
something which a JSSP should address, and we ask the Panel to pursue it strongly in 
that light.  It clearly relates importantly to comments in the next paragraph.

4. Concerning the Green Belt paper from the Growth Board, we would emphasize the 
importance of preventing urban sprawl, the essential characteristics of openness and 
permanence, and the five purposes listed as points a to e in the paper.  The 1955 Act 
setting up Green Belts made it clear that ‘within urban areas thus defined (being 
surrounded by a Green Belt), every effort should be made to prevent any further 
building for industrial and commercial purposes’, thus creating ‘a demand for 
development of additional land for housing’.  There is full employment in Oxfordshire, 
yet the City’s current Local Plan, despite saying that housing is its number one priority, 
is preventing conversion of redundant shops and offices to housing but allocating yet 
more land for unneeded employment which could be used for housing instead.   The 
Growth Board’s purposes stress growth in such a way, and without proper input from 
the public or even District Councillors, that presents great dangers of accelerating 
house-building, even including mixed development, in the Green Belt.  I remind 
members of the Panel that a CPRE opinion survey using a large sample of 
Oxfordshire residents living in the City, towns and the countryside, showed that 75% 
believed that the Oxford Green Belt ‘should remain open and undeveloped, and 
building on it not be allowed’, whereas only 12% believed ‘there could be justification 
for building on it’.  Oxfordshire will, if growth continues to be a priority, require not only 
extra protection given to the Oxford Green Belt but further green belts created for other 
county towns.  Green Belts give great environmental advantages for the health and 
well-being of residents but are essentially a planning tool to be ignored in Oxfordshire 
at its peril.  We ask the Panel to persuade the Growth Board to use all these facts in 
their further consideration of Green Belts in Oxfordshire’.

Sue Haywood representing Need not Greed Oxfordshire asked the following question:

‘Need not Greed Oxfordshire would like to ask the Scrutiny Panel whether it is satisfied 
that appropriate democratic processes are in place, and being applied, to guide 
development of the Oxfordshire Plan 2050.  I have five brief examples I would like to bring 
to your attention by way of illustration:

 The recent Joint Declaration of Ambition between HM Government and Local 
Partners (which, as far as we are aware, did not go through any local council 
committees) appears to commit Oxfordshire to being part of the "economic engine" for 
the UK, with Arc-wide growth targets and effectively pre-determining the Plan’s 
consultation outcomes.  

 The Growth Board agenda next week includes the election of a representative to 
the Oxford-Cambridge Arc Executive Committee, without any accompanying 
documentation or any explanation of the proposed governance structures or terms of 

Page 10

Agenda Item 4



5

reference, and again, with no apparent discussion or mandate at appropriate local 
council committees. 

 The Oxfordshire Plan document currently out for consultation differs from the draft 
signed off by local councils, yet at the time of that sign off, some councillors were not 
provided with an opportunity to introduce changes they had wanted to make.  We 
should say that we are not necessarily opposed to all the changes made but it does 
raise serious questions about who made these changes and on what authority, and 
what judgement was applied to decide whether these constituted major or minor 
changes. 

 The forthcoming Growth Board meeting agenda pack is minimal, and there seems 
to be an increasing reliance on verbal reports, and a failure to make sub-committee 
minutes available. 

 At the last meeting, the Growth Board appeared to dismiss Scrutiny’s request for 
more effective communication between Leaders and councillors, saying that they had 
‘already established clear communication with their other council members", yet the 
Scrutiny Panel had clearly identified this as a continuing concern and our 
understanding from local councillors is that this remains the case. 

Bearing these examples in mind, if the Scrutiny Panel now considers there to be serious 
flaws in Growth Board and Oxfordshire Plan 2050 processes, we would be grateful to 
know what you consider could be done to address this?’

In discussion about the issues raised the Panel commented:

1. The issues raised by the questioner were noted, and would be considered and 
captured as part of the Panel’s response to the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 consultation. 

2. Government policy on Green Belts was set out in the National Planning Policy 
Framework, (NPPF) but it was open to local planning authorities to take a view on how 
the framework was applied. 

3. That objectives of growth and sustainability were not exclusive
4. That it recognised and understood the concerns raised by CPRE in respect of the 

timings of its meeting.  Officers worked very hard to produce reports in the time 
available and it was felt that the arrangements were the best they could be in the 
circumstances. 

5. That it noted that HM Government had published the Joint Declaration of Ambition with 
regard to growth in the Oxford to Cambridge Arc, and it shared the concern that the 
declaration did not appear to have been through any local council committees. The 
Panel also expressed reservations that there was a lack of background information in 
the Growth Board agenda to the appointment of a representative to Ox-Cam Arc 
Executive Committee.

6. That it noted the apparent differences between the issued Oxfordshire Plan 2050 
consultation document and that signed off by local councils. The Panel, nevertheless, 
recognised that in relation to such a document it was customary to delegate the 
making of minor amendments to officers. This issue would, however, be explored as 
part of a later agenda item.

After a further detailed discussion, the Panel agreed that the Chair of the Growth Board 
should be invited to attend the next meeting to answer questions relating to:

 The amendment of the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 consultation document after signing off 
by the Councils

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



6

 The lack of substantive reports on the Growth Board Agenda including role and 
rationale for the appointment of a GB member to the Arc.

RESOLVED: That the Chair of the Growth Board be invited to attend the 30 May 2019 
meeting of the Scrutiny Panel.  

33 Oxfordshire Plan 2050 - update on project plan and Green Belt 

Giles Hughes, Head of Planning and Strategic Housing – West Oxfordshire District 
Council, presented a paper which set out a programme to produce Oxfordshire Plan 2050 
(JSSP) and work to develop an evidence base for the Regulation 18 Part 2 consultations. 
He also introduced a separate paper on the Green Belt and Oxfordshire Plan 2050. This 
followed a request from the Panel to receive further information on these issues at its 
previous meeting.

The following points were highlighted to the Panel:

 Ongoing discussions were taking place with Highways England and the Ministry of 
Housing, Communities and Local Government, (MHCLG) with the regard to the impact 
of a consultation on a potential OxCam Expressway and the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 
consultation.  The discussions had been positive, and it was considered that the 
relationships between the two documents were understood better, although the 
discussions remained work in progress. 

 The detailed workstreams which would support the Regulation 18 Part 2 document. 
Many of these would be new commissions from experts in their field. 

 As part of the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 process, it was an appropriate time for 
discussions to take place on the impact of the Plan on the Green Belt.

During discussions, significant concerns were expressed that the timing between the 
Regulation 18 Part 2 Oxfordshire Plan 2050 consultation and HM Government’s 
consultation on the OxCam Expressway were not aligned. The potential routes for the 
Expressway would have a significant impact on the choice of housing sites, and this 
needed to be recognised by the Growth Board.

With regard to the agenda paper on the Green Belt, the main points raised in discussion 
were as follows:

 Commitment to the principle of the continued protection of the Green Belt.
 While helpful, the map of the Oxford Green Belt was not an up to date reflection of its 

current location, nor did it reflect the existing allocation of development sites. There 
was also the need to reflect and consider Green Belt locations across the county as a 
whole.

 Although the Panel recognised the status of the Green Belt, development had always 
been possible within its boundaries. Some members felt that the role of the Green Belt 
was not to prevent all development, but instead to constrain urban sprawl. The 
challenge is, therefore, to facilitate public transport corridors and encourage 
development where it could be most sustainable. The focus of the suggested 
questions within the paper was, therefore, incorrect. 

Page 12

Agenda Item 4



7

 Issues such as natural capital, access to open space and the positive health impact of 
Green Belt were also topics that needed to be taken into consideration as part of any 
review.  The Panel noted that Officers had to work with the published NPPF criteria 
around Green Belts, but there was scope to interpret it in different ways, for instance 
around environmental quality and climate change. 

 Oxfordshire remained a largely agricultural county and this needed to be reflected in 
the continued protection of the Green Belt as a key principle. The continued 
maintenance of Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty, (AONB) alongside the Green 
Belt was also very important. 

 Concerns were expressed by several members of the Panel around the sustainability 
of the existing 100,000 homes planned as part of the growth Deal. Further anxieties 
were also expressed regarding the potential impact of the Oxford to Cambridge Arc on 
sustainability and the Green Belt.  

 There was a need to take a holistic view of the protection of the Green Belt and 
climate change by considering carbon sequestration, zero carbon strategies and 
reforestation as environmental infrastructure within the Oxfordshire Plan 2050.

RESOLVED: 
1) That the Growth Board reflect on the inability of the Consultation on Issues (Scale of 

growth and broad locations - Reg 18 Part 2) to be effective as it precedes the HM 
Government’s decision on the Oxford – Cambridge Expressway route.

2) That the Growth Board emphasise the continued protection of not only the Green Belt 
but also the AONB and Rural Oxfordshire by adding it to the principles of the 
Oxfordshire Plan 2050 Vision and by including it as a part of the Green Belt review: 
reinforcing the existing policies in the NPPF. In addition, the existing allocation of 
development sites within the Green Belt by local authorities is factored in to the 
Oxfordshire Plan 2050 Green Belt review.

3) That the Growth Board take a holistic view in mitigating climate change and 
preservation of the Green Belt by adding carbon sequestration, zero carbon strategies 
and reforestation as part of the environmental infrastructure to the Oxfordshire Plan 
2050.

The Panel agreed:
That an updated map showing the Green Belt across the county, including sites already 
developed or allocated, be presented to the May meeting

34 Scrutiny Panel response to Oxfordshire Plan 2050 (JSSP) 
consultation 

The Scrutiny Panel considered the agreement of an approved formal response to the 
Section 18 consultation for the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 (JSSP) consultation. 

The Chairman thanked members of the Panel who had submitted individual responses to 
consultation questions as set out in the report. He commented that it was very important 
for the Panel’s final consultation response to capture as many points as possible, and that 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



8

in considering specific responses to individual questions there were several general 
themes that he felt should be included:

 Climate change and environmental aspirations
 Housing numbers as part of the growth agenda – how to create a different evidence 

base; expectations around the need for growth in light of the Joint Declaration on 
the Oxford to Cambridge Arc; and the impression given by HM Government that the 
Arc was an economic growth area.  

 A greater emphasis on prioritising opportunities for clean energy generation (e.g. 
wind farms), in addition to the promotion of energy efficiency.  

A summary of the additional points made as part of the discussion of the consultation 
questions is set out below:

 Q7 – Natural and built environment context – concerns over the availability of water in 
the future to support levels of planned development, and the protection of water 
resources such as the possibility of a reservoir near Abingdon.

 Q7 – Natural and built environment context - the status of the Blenheim Estate as a 
World Heritage site needed to be reflected and given due prominence within the plan.  

 Q10 – Transport and connectivity context – rail networks in Oxfordshire including the 
new Oxford Parkway to Marylebone link had been successful which called into 
question the need for an Oxford-Cambridge expressway. Not enough emphasis on 
train travel and too much emphasis on car travel 

 Q11 – Broadband speeds were still very low in many parts of Oxfordshire  
 Q17 – Aspirations 5 – Improve connectivity and movement – it was not felt that 

technologies would have advanced to such a point by 2050 that the rush hour 
commute would be a thing of the past. 

 Concerns as to whether sufficient account had been taken of both existing population 
growth and the potential impact upon this of development.

RESOLVED: That given the requirement to submit the response by the end of Monday 25 
March the Growth Board Scrutiny Officer should compile the final wording in consultation 
with the Panel Chair. 

35 Affordable Housing Sub-Group - update on affordable housing 
performance 2018/2019 

The Panel considered a report as set out in the Agenda providing an update on affordable 
housing delivery in 2017/2018 and an estimated performance for 2018/2019, by district 
and city council.  It was noted that councils set annual targets for affordable housing 
delivery. These were expressed as numeric totals and included both the proportion of 
affordable housing on sites secured through planning policy, and sites delivered 
exclusively for affordable housing by either registered providers or local housing delivery 
companies.

Councillor Turner expressed disappointment that Oxford City Council had not achieved its 
affordable housing target for 2017/2018. 

Page 14

Agenda Item 4



9

After further discussion it was also felt that it would be beneficial for the Panel to receive a 
report on projected targets. 

RESOLVED: 
1) That the report be noted
2) That information on projected targets for years post 2018/2019 by district be included 

in future update reports. 

36 Growth Board response to Scrutiny Panel recommendations - 
January 2019 meeting 

The Panel noted the Growth Board’s responses to the recommendations from the meeting 
on 24 January 2019 as set out in the Agenda. Councillor Gant updated the Panel on his 
attendance at the Growth Board on 29 January 2019. 

With regard to the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 Part 1 consultation process and awareness 
events, officers were asked to provide an update with specific reference to any 
presentations made in schools. The Panel had previously expressed concerns around 
levels of engagement in the consultation process by young people.

Giles Hughes responded that he could not give an exact number of school specific 
presentations, but that overall it was felt that the consultation events to date, including the 
bus tours to towns within the county, had worked well. Lessons around optimal settings 
would be learned as some locations had enjoyed better attendance than others. The 
number of people making comments and registering to take part in the process at this 
early stage was encouraging. Further, in addition to the number of visits to physical 
events, it was interesting to note that traffic on the Growth Board website had increased – 
particularly around various publicised events. This indicated that people were finding out 
more and engaging in the work of the Growth Board and Growth Deal.

It was felt that it would be useful for the Panel to receive feedback arising from the events.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 

37 Oxfordshire Growth Board papers 26 March 2019 

The Panel discussed the Agenda and reports published for the Oxfordshire Growth Board 
meeting on 26 March.  

Prior to the consideration of individual agenda items, the Panel commented that it shared 
the concerns expressed by the previous public speakers around the high number of verbal 
items on the Growth Board Agenda and wished to record its dissatisfaction. It noted that 
only two written reports were available to the Panel prior to its meeting, and that while a 
supplementary Growth Board agenda had been issued shortly before, this did not allow for 
enough prior consideration. In addition, the lack of a forward programme for the Growth 
Board and lack of advisory sub-group notes made it more difficult for the Panel to 
undertake its role in reviewing the work of the Board and holding it to account. 

In their discussion about the issues raised by individual agenda items, the Panel 
commented that:

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



10

 Item 6: Appointment of Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Growth Board for 
2019/2020. The Panel commented that it would have wished to have understood the 
rationale and process to be followed by the Growth Board in considering the 
appointment. 

 Item 7: Appointment of a representative to the Oxford to Cambridge Arc. The Panel 
commented that as no information had been supplied with the item it was not possible 
for it to gain an understanding of the role and the process and rationale for 
appointment.  Given the likely importance of the role this was disappointing, and it was 
felt more information was needed. 

RESOLVED: 
1) That the Growth Board be requested to have a clear work programme. In addition, 

items on the Growth Board agenda should be concise and substantial and also be 
supported by reports/information on all items which are published along with the 
substantive agenda. This includes update notes from the three advisory Sub-
Groups ensuring that the reports are produced well in advance of the Scrutiny 
Panel meeting and that the Growth Board minutes including any written responses 
to public questions.

2) That the Growth Board be requested to provide background information on Ox-Cam 
Arc Executive Committee and the role of the representative to the Committee 
including basis of appointment.

3) That the Growth Board be requested to revisit the recommendation on structured 
communication between the Growth Board and council’s members considering 
member reports of having received incorrect and incomplete information.

38 Work Programme for the Scrutiny Panel - March 2019 

The Panel discussed its work programme as set out in the Agenda and the following 
additional items were agreed. 

 An up to date Oxfordshire Green Belt Map which includes already developed areas 
and existing allocation of sites for development.

 Report on Air Quality Action Plans being adopted by each local authority 
 That information on projected affordable housing targets for years post 2018/2019 

by district be included in future update reports. 
 Health services and Green transport and safety (Cycle routes) vision in Oxon Plan 

2050 as growth is delivered. 
 Presentation or report from the Growth Deal infrastructure team.  

39 Dates of meetings 

The Panel noted the dates of meetings as:

Scrutiny Panel 
30 May 6.30 pm
25 July 6.30 pm

Page 16

Agenda Item 4



11

All meetings are to be held in Oxford Town Hall. 
 

The meeting closed at 8.45 pm

Chairman Date

Page 17

Agenda Item 4



 
Report Author: Paul Staines, Growth Deal Service Delivery Manager 
 

Note to Growth Board Scrutiny Panel 
 

Oxfordshire’s Affordable Housing Potential - secured through planning policy 
 

 
Scrutiny will recall that at its last meeting it asked officers for the following 
information 
 
‘Councils set annual targets for affordable housing delivery. These are numeric totals 
that will include both the proportion of affordable housing on housing sites secured 
through planning policy and sites developed exclusively for affordable housing by 
either Registered Providers or Local Housing Delivery companies. 
 
Scrutiny also asked for information on the delivery rates for affordable housing. 
Tracking the delivery of affordable housing as a percentage of total housing 
delivered could be a way of illustrating the success of planning policy in securing 
affordable housing. However, any analysis would need to recognise that there are 
many site-specific variables that can cause a variance from the policy 
percentage expected. For this reason, this note restricts itself to a numeric 
assessment of affordable housing delivery.’ 
 
Scrutiny’s request correctly notes that any estimate of councils’ affordable housing 
delivery would be derived from the overall housing trajectory and the application of 
planning policies to deliver a proportion of affordable housing on market sites 
alongside sites developed exclusively for affordable housing, for example rural 
exceptions sites. 
 
 However, affordable housing trajectories also need to take account of the fact that 
affordable housing levels derived through planning policy will always be subject to 
the challenge of site viability, i.e. can the site reasonably deliver that level of 
affordable housing. Any development site has many calls upon its value, many of 
them required to make the site deliverable for example road or utility infrastructure. 
Affordable housing is the largest cost to a development that is not ‘site required’ and 
so always comes under pressure when viability is being considered. 
 
For this reason, the figures offered by the councils below can only be the overall 
architecture of affordable housing from housing development in Oxfordshire. Within 
this architecture councils will take a more granular approach to affordable housing 
trajectories based on an understanding of each sites capacity to deliver affordable 
housing.  This knowledge is more precise as detailed work on the schemes is 
undertaken and therefore later years of the trajectory include more uncertainty.  
 
The work necessary to derive this affordable housing architecture is carried out 
annually by councils as part of the preparation of their housing trajectories. These 
are completed in the first few months of the year and feed into Council’s Annual 
Monitoring Reports. Inevitably, with this question being asked by Scrutiny so close to 
the year end not all councils have completed this work and those that have, will have 
had to include a degree of estimation. For these reasons, in addition to the above 
these figures where they have been provided must be treated with caution and not 
be seen as targets. 

Page 18

Agenda Item 7



 
Report Author: Paul Staines, Growth Deal Service Delivery Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
The figures received to date are as follows: 
 

 2019-23 2023-27 2027-31 Total 

Cherwell 693 482 267 1442 

Oxford To follow    

South Oxfordshire 509 536 619 1664 

Vale of White Horse 610 515 346 1471 

West Oxfordshire To follow    

Total 1812 1533 1232 4577 

  
Report Author: Paul Staines, Growth Deal Service Delivery Manager 

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



Oxford

Drayton

Eynsham

Bicester

Abingdon

Kidlington

Legend
Emerging Local Plan* proposed Greenbelt amendments

Oxford Greenbelt

±

Page 20

Agenda Item 8

kc508652
Typewritten Text
*Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 (Part 1) Partial Review, South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2034,   Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2.   Does not include Oxford Local Plan 2016-2036

kc508652_1
Typewritten Text

kc508652_2
Typewritten Text

kc508652_3
Typewritten Text

kc508652_4
Typewritten Text

kc508652_5
Typewritten Text

kc508652_6
Typewritten Text



Oxfordshire Growth Board Scrutiny Panel 
30th May 2019 
Agenda Item   Growth Deal Infrastructure Programme 
Report author Aaron Rosser- Growth Deal Service Delivery manager 
Aaron.Rosser@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

 
Report to Oxfordshire Growth Board Scrutiny Panel 

 
Growth Deal Infrastructure Programme 

 
Report Purpose 
 

1) To introduce the Scrutiny Panel to the Growth Deal Infrastructure Workstream 
and consider how to address some of the key issues in building a successful 
programme. 

 
Background 
 

2) Since the recession of the last decade, Oxfordshire’s cumulative growth has 
been higher than any other local area. Our total economic output is around 
£22bn a year, meaning economic output per capita is among the highest in 
the UK, and we make a significant net contribution to the exchequer. 
 

3) This success brings with it challenges – not least housing affordability with 
Oxfordshire the 5th least affordable housing market in the country relative to 
earnings, with median prices to median earnings ratio of over 10, but also 
recruitment, transport congestion, and pressure on other physical and social 
infrastructure. 
 

4) Oxfordshire’s six local authorities, together with OxLEP, are working together 
on an ambitious, comprehensive and integrated approach to addressing our 
housing, infrastructure and economic challenges to deliver the potential of our 
world class knowledge economy and high quality sustainable development 
across the County. 
 

5) Oxfordshire has engaged actively with opportunities to secure local and 
national funding to rise to this challenge, through the 2013 City Deal process, 
Local Growth Fund, developer contributions, current bids to the Housing 
Infrastructure Fund and through the Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal. 
 

6) The Chancellor and Secretary of State for Communities and Local 
Government announced on 22 November 2017 that Oxfordshire would 
receive £215m of new funding to support Oxfordshire’s ambition to plan for 
and support the delivery of 100,000 homes by 2031. £150m of this funding 
focuses on infrastructure delivery. 
 

7) The focus of the Infrastructure workstream is to set out how the infrastructure 
funding provided by the Deal will support a programme of transport and 
related infrastructure schemes to support planned housing development in 
Oxfordshire over a five-year period from 2018/19 to 2022/23. 

 
8) Although the £150m does not meet the full funding gap to deliver the 

infrastructure required to plan for and support the delivery of all 100,000 

Page 21

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire Growth Board Scrutiny Panel 
30th May 2019 
Agenda Item   Growth Deal Infrastructure Programme 
Report author Aaron Rosser- Growth Deal Service Delivery manager 
Aaron.Rosser@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

 
homes, it will help accelerate the delivery of approximately 6,549 houses 
during the period of the Deal, and a total of 14,000 by 2031. 
 

9) Using evidence from Oxfordshire Infrastructure Strategy (that has been 
informed by Oxfordshire’s 5 Local Plan Infrastructure Delivery Plans) the 
Infrastructure Delivery Programme will focus on unlocking the housing 
planned for in current and emerging Local Plans. 

 
The Infrastructure Programme 
 

10) In year one 17 schemes were commenced as planned and are currently on 
target for successful delivery (see Annex 1). 

 
11) All schemes are still currently set to deliver against their accelerated housing 

trajectory targets as discussed with the Growth Board and Homes England. 
 

12) Spend for Year 1 was £30m as planned. A full year reconciliation took place 
immediately after financial year end and the current forecast is below. 
 

13) The infrastructure activity profile below shows that the majority of work in year 
one and two of the Growth Deal Infrastructure Programme is related to the 
earlier stages in a typical infrastructure scheme, year three sees most activity 
associated with design and planning, and year four and five sees the move 
into the construction phase. 

 

 
 

14) The following Growth Deal milestones for Quarter 4 were achieved / 
commenced: - 

 Commencement of Oxfordshire Infrastructure Strategy review and 
updating exercise – drafting of scoping document for procurement 
exercise. 

 Agreement of Year 2 to 5 infrastructure programme and associated 
housing delivery programme. 
 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

Growth Deal Infrastructure Programme Activity (%)

Site Investigations Preliminary Design Planning Stages

Detailed Design Pre-Construction Construction

Page 22

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire Growth Board Scrutiny Panel 
30th May 2019 
Agenda Item   Growth Deal Infrastructure Programme 
Report author Aaron Rosser- Growth Deal Service Delivery manager 
Aaron.Rosser@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

 
15) Following endorsement of the proposed 2-5 Year Infrastructure Programme 

by the Infrastructure Sub-Group and subsequently endorsed by the Growth 
Board the following works have been undertaken in readiness for the start of 
Y2-5 delivery in April 2019: - 

 Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO) surveyors and land referencing 
consultant’s procurement exercise has commenced to support recently 
appointed CPO legal support in preparation of land acquisition 
strategy, discussions and preparation for potential CPOs required. 

 Cash flow and master programmes are currently being reviewed in light 
of land acquisition discussions, initial design and feasibility work. 

 Feasibility consultants and traffic modelling work currently being 
procured for Year 2 schemes. 

 Year 2 schemes documentation and programme management tools 
have been drafted and schemes have commenced early stages of 
feasibility and design / costs. 

 End of Y1 discussions with Ministry of Homes Communities and Local 
Government have taken place to review Y1 progress and plans for Y2-
5.  

 
Risks & Issues 
 

16) The following risks have been identified as the key risks to the infrastructure 
programme: 

 Managing the impact on the Oxfordshire road network due to the large 
numbers of schemes being delivered within a very tight period of time 
and ensuring that the network still manages to operate without too 
much difficulty. 

 Procurement and market readiness due to the large number of 
schemes that needs to be delivered in a short period of time with a 
limited number of resources available in the market place we need to 
make sure that the ability of the market is ready for the huge demands 
for materials and personnel.  

 Potential delays associated with CPO and the acquisition of land. Due 
to the lengthy period of time required to prepare and undertake a CPO 
Inquiry OCC are preparing the background work required in 
preparation to maintain timescales. 

 Reliance on third parties (developers / network rail etc) for delivery as 
they won’t be working on the same tight timescales as OCC and will 
need encouraging and reminding of priorities agreed with Government.  

 Reliance on third parties (developers / network rail etc) for delivery of 
infrastructure and resolution of planning issues needed to unblock sites   

 External market factors such as Brexit may be having an impact. We 
have seen material process increase and this will impact on budgets 
and ultimately the scopes we are able to deliver. 

 
17) Mitigation strategies are in place to address those risks highlighted above. 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire Growth Board Scrutiny Panel 
30th May 2019 
Agenda Item   Growth Deal Infrastructure Programme 
Report author Aaron Rosser- Growth Deal Service Delivery manager 
Aaron.Rosser@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

 
Conclusions  

18) Year one commitments were achieved, and in the first year we have been 
able to forward fund the schemes that are having a direct benefit to the 
acceleration of housing sites.  

 
19) Development of the year two to five infrastructure scheme programme will 

ensure this continues over the five year programme.  
 

20) External market factors such as Brexit may be having an impact, this requires 
further analysis and understanding to inform what future impact could be and 
what interventions could assist. 

Page 24

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire Growth Board Scrutiny Panel 
30th May 2019 
Agenda Item   Growth Deal Infrastructure Programme 
Report author Aaron Rosser- Growth Deal Service Delivery manager 
Aaron.Rosser@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

 
ANNEX 1 – INFRASTRUCTURE DELIVERY CONFIDENCE 

 

 
GROWTH DEAL INFRASTRUCTURE WORKSTREAM REPORT PACK – MARCH 
‘19 
 

 
YEAR 1 MILESTONE DELIVERY CONFIDENCE:   
GO GREEN ACTIONS BY PROJECT 
 
  

Area 
 
Project Title 

Delivery 
Confidence (DC) 

 
GO GREEN Delivery 
Confidence ACTION  
(who/when?) 

 
Notes 

04/05/18 
RAG 

MAR’19 
 RAG 

2 West 
Access to 

Carterton (B4447 
& Slips) 

RED AMBER 

Scheme only partially 
delivering scope in Year 1 – 
remainder of feasibility for 
scheme will be delivered in 
Year 2. Project Lead 

To go 
Green in 
Y2 

3 City 
Access to 

Headington 

 
GREEN 

 
GREEN 

 
N/A 

 

5 City 
Oxford Citywide 

cycle and 
pedestrian routes 

AMB AMBER 

Schemes have been 
identified and progress is 
starting – to ‘go green’ the 
projects will need to be all 
on site and construction 
started. Project Lead 

To go 
Green in 
Y2 

6 City 
A4260 and A44 

Corridor 
Improvements 

AMB GREEN 
N/A  

7 City 
Botley Road Rail 

Bridge 
AMB GREEN 

N/A  

9 City SE Corridor Study AMB AMBER 
‘Go-green’ achievable 
when design option settled 
upon. Skansa 

To go 
Green in 
Y2 

10 City 
Botley Road 

Corridor 

AMB 
 
 

GREEN 
N/A  

11 Cherwell 
Tramway Road 

Banbury 
AMB AMBER 

‘Go-green’ achievable 
when design solution 
decided upon and land 
requirements are settled 
upon. Project lead 

To go 
Green in 
Y2 

12 Cherwell 

Former RAF 
Upper Heyford 

Mitigation 
Package 

AMB AMBER 

Modelling work to be 
completed shortly and then 
design work can be 
commissioned by OCC and 
third party developer. 
Project Lead / Developer 

To go 
Green in 
Y2 

14 South 
Benson Relief 

Road 
AMB GREEN 

N/A  
 
 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire Growth Board Scrutiny Panel 
30th May 2019 
Agenda Item   Growth Deal Infrastructure Programme 
Report author Aaron Rosser- Growth Deal Service Delivery manager 
Aaron.Rosser@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

 

15  Vale 

Featherbed Lane 
capacity 

improvements 
and junction 
widening at 

A4130 / B4017 

RED AMBER 

Appointment of consultants 
for optioneering work. 
Project lead 

To go 
Green in 
Y2 

16  Vale 
Milton Enterprise 
Pedestrian and 
Cycle Bridge 

AMB GREEN 
N/A 
 

 

17 South 
Watlington Edge 

Road 
AMB AMBER 

Only a portion of the Y1 
scope will be delivered in 
Y1, not planning to 
undertake whole scope. 

To go 
Green in 
Y2 

18 County 
Oxford Flood 

Alleviation 
Scheme 

GREEN GREEN 
N/A  

19 West 
Rapid Transit 

Lane 2 
GREEN 

GREEN 
N/A  

20 West 
Witney A40 

Downs Road 
Junction 

GREEN 
 GREEN 

N/A  

21 County 
Schools Capital 

Contribution 
GREEN 
 

GREEN 
N/A  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire Growth Board Scrutiny Panel 
30th May 2019 
Agenda Item   Growth Deal Infrastructure Programme 
Report author Aaron Rosser- Growth Deal Service Delivery manager 
Aaron.Rosser@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

 
ANNEX 2 – YEAR 1-5 INFRASTRUCTURE SCHEMES 

District Year Project  

City 1 Y01-03 Access to Headington (penultimate and final phase) 
City 1 Y01-05 Oxford city wide cycle and pedestrian schemes 

City 1 Y01-07 Oxford Station Redevelopment Phase 3 - Infrastructure to include 
new station building and Botley Road Bridge 

City 1 Y01-10 Botley Road Corridor 
City 1 Y01-18 Oxford Flood Alleviation Scheme (OFAS) - OCC contribution 
City 1 Y01-21 Oxford - Barton West - Primary 
City 1 Y01-22 Cowley Branch Line 
City 2 Y02-01 SE Corridors Study Component - Barns Road corridor 
City 2 Y02-03 SE Corridors Study Component - Eastern Bypass corridor 

City 2 Y02-04 SE Corridors Study Component - Cowley Road/Garsington 
Road/Watlington Road corridor 

City 2 Y02-05 SE Corridors Study Component - A4074 corridor 
City 2 Y02-06 SE Corridors Study Component - B4495 corridor 
City 2 Y02-07 SE Corridors Study Component - Abingdon Road corridor 
City 2 Y02-08 SE Corridors Study Component - Iffley Road corridor 
City 2 Y02-11 Oxpens to Osney Mead bridge 
City 2 Y02-12 Becket Street extension 
City 2 Y02-18 Banbury Road improvement (Banbury Road Corridor) 
City 2 Y02-19 Woodstock Road improvements (Woodstock Road Corridor) 

      

West 1 Y01-02 A40/Minster Lovell West Facing Slips/ Access to Carterton (B4477 
Upgrade and Witney to Carterton Premium Cycle Route) 

West 1 Y01-20 Witney A40 Downs Road junction  
West 1 Y01-19 Rapid Transit Line 2 - contribution 
West 3 Y03-05 Access to Witney at Shores Green  

      
Cherwell 1 Y01-06 North Oxford All Modes Transport Strategy Study 
Cherwell 1 Y01-11 Tramway Road accessibility improvements 
Cherwell 1 Y01-12 Former RAF Upper Heyford Mitigation package phase 1 
Cherwell 1 Y01-13 North West Bicester Realignment of the A4095 
Cherwell 1 Y01-21 Banbury, Southam Road - Primary 
Cherwell 1 Y01-21 Bicester, South West - Secondary 
Cherwell 1 Y01-21 Bloxham, Warriner - Secondary 
Cherwell 2 Y02-14 Howes Lane/Lords Lane Realignment 

Cherwell 2 Y02-16 A44 corridor improvements from Langford Lane to Peartree 
roundabout (Woodstock Road Corridor) 

Cherwell 2 Y02-17 Former RAF Upper Heyford Mitigation package phase 2 - Option 1 - 
Junction 10 and surrounding junctions 

Cherwell 3 Y03-06 Ploughley Road / A41 Bicester - signalisation of junction 

Cherwell 3 Y03-07 A361 Bloxham Road to A4260 Oxford Road link road, Banbury - new 
spine road through development sites 

Cherwell 2 Y02-20 A422 Hennef Way, Banbury - Relief to severe congestion  

Page 27

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire Growth Board Scrutiny Panel 
30th May 2019 
Agenda Item   Growth Deal Infrastructure Programme 
Report author Aaron Rosser- Growth Deal Service Delivery manager 
Aaron.Rosser@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

 
      

South 1 Y01-14 Benson Relief Road 
South  2 Y02-15 Golden Balls Roundabout junction improvements (A4074/B4015)  
South  3 Y03-01 Thame to Haddenham cycle route 
South 1 Y01-17 Watlington Relief Road 
South  3 Y03-04 Jubilee Way Roundabout  

      
Vale 1 Y01-21 East Hanney St James 
Vale 1 Y01-21 Faringdon Community College 
Vale 1 Y01-21 John Blandy, Southmoor Primary 
Vale 2 Y02-02 SE Corridors Study Component - A34 corridor 
 Vale 2 Y02-09 Wantage Eastern Link road 
Vale 2 Y02-10 Shrivenham New School - cover shortfall in funding for new school 
 Vale 2 Y02-13 Frilford junction 
 Vale 3 Y03-03 Marcham Bypass 
 Vale 1 Fitzwaryn School Expansion 
Vale 1 Y01-15 Featherbed Lane and Steventon Lights 
Vale 1 Y01-16 Milton Enterprise Pedestrian and Cycle Bridge 

      
South & Vale 1 Y01-21 Didcot Great Western Park - Primary #2 

South & Vale 3 Y03-02 Didcot Garden Town Project: Central Didcot Transport Corridor 
improvements  

South & Vale   Summer DataCapture: Frilford junction and Marcham Bypass 
      

 

Page 28

Agenda Item 9



Report Author: Rachel Williams 
Oxford Plan 2050 Lead  

Response to Scrutiny Panel request in relation to  
air quality and climate change in the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 

 
 
Growth Board Scrutiny Panel has requested an update as follows: 

• Air Quality plans as envisaged by the Oxon Plan 2050 Vision & Objectives with a focus 
on mitigating climate change in these areas of development. 

 
 
 
Current and emerging Local Plans in Oxfordshire allocate the sites for development in the 
period to 2031, 2034 or 2036.  Each of those plans (and the policies and allocations therein) are 
supported by an evidence base that provides baseline information and an assessment of impact 
of the proposals.  That evidence covers a range of topic areas including the environment and in 
relation to air quality and climate change.   
 
All those plans that are already adopted have been able to demonstrate to an Inspector that 
they are supported the appropriate level of evidence that the policies are “sound”.  The level of 
air quality or flooding evidence for example will increase in areas that are most sensitive to 
change (e.g. at Special Areas of Conservation) or where proposals for more sensitive uses are 
proposed. Further evidence will be required as part of any subsequent planning application in 
proportion to the level of detail.   
 
Emerging plans (the South Oxfordshire Local Plan, Oxford City Local Plan, Partial Review of 
Cherwell Local Plan and Vale Local Plan Part 2) are currently subject to examination and those 
Inspectors are considering the proposals and the evidence provided. 
 
 
Similarly, the Oxfordshire Plan will need to be supported by an appropriate level of evidence to 
satisfy an inspector that the plan is sound. 
 
The Oxfordshire Plan will need to appropriately consider climate change and air quality issues. 
This will be assessed through the Sustainability Appraisal process which is a statutory 
requirement of this and all plans. Detailed air quality modelling will also be needed to satisfy the 
requirements of the Habitats Regulations should the Oxfordshire Plan recommend areas of 
growth in locations which would impact on the Special Areas of Conservation (biodiversity sites 
of international importance).  The necessity and extent of this air quality modelling will become 
clearer once the level and distribution of growth to be proposed through Oxfordshire Plan is 
available. 
 
The Oxfordshire Plan is still in the very early stages of development. As the plan is developed 
there will be opportunities for policies to be developed to help address climate change and air 
quality issues. The vision and objectives of the Plan (tested at the earlier consultation stage) 
recognise these issues.  Responses from stakeholders and the wider public were very 
supportive of this approach and many requested that this issue forms a strong element of the 
Plan going forward.  The development of policies will be subject to further public consultation 
and stakeholder engagement. 
 
In addition to the local context for the Oxfordshire Plan, it will be important that the policies and 
proposals take account of (and seek to further) the aims of wider government policy and 
strategy in terms of environmental quality and climate change.  The Oxfordshire Plan provides 
and opportunity to apply and embed goals and targets such as those included in the 
Government’s “25 Year Plan to Improve the Environment”.  Detailed polices will likely be 
included in future Local Plans (as will be the case for other topic areas) but the Oxfordshire Plan 
can provide the strategic context for those on a county-wide basis. 

Page 29

Agenda Item 10



Appendix 1 
 
 
 
 

 
Growth Board response to recommendations of the Growth Board Scrutiny Panel  
Recommendations made on 21 March 2019  
Draft response provided by 26 March 2019  
 
The Growth Board is requested to provide a draft response to the recommendations of the Scrutiny Panel, to be published as a 
supplement collectively with the Scrutiny Panel’s report, for decision at its meeting on 26 March 2019.  
 

Recommendation Agree?  Comment 

 
Recommendation 1: That the Chair of the Growth 
Board be invited to attend the 30th May 2019 
meeting of the Scrutiny Panel. 
 

 
Agreed in 
principle  

 
Subject to the Chair’s other diary commitments. 
 

 
Recommendation 2: That the Growth Board reflect 
on the inability of the Consultation on Issues (Scale 
of growth and broad locations - Reg 18 Part 2) to be 
effective as it precedes the government’s decision 
on Oxford – Cambridge Expressway route. 
 

 
Agree 

 
The Growth Board shares the views of the scrutiny panel 
that there could be added value from the alignment of the 
consultation on the Oxford – Cambridge Expressway route 
and the Oxfordshire Plan 2050.  However, the timetable for 
the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 is fixed in the housing and 
growth deal delivery plan while the Expressway is a matter 
for Highways England.  Officers have raised this issue with 
civil servants. 
 

 
Recommendation 3: That the Growth Board 
emphasise the continued protection of not only the 
Green Belt but also AONB and Rural Oxfordshire by 
adding it to the principles of the Oxon Plan 2050 
vision and by including it as a part of the Green Belt 
review reinforcing the existing policies in the NPPF. 
In addition, the existing allocation of development 
sites within the Green Belt by local authorities is 

 
Agree  The Board is clear that it does not support growth at any 

cost, we want good growth that’s planned and managed at 
a sustainable level and that protects and enhances the 
environment, including areas of outstanding natural beauty 
and other designations. The City and District Councils, as 
the Local Planning Authorities who are responsible for the 
Oxfordshire Plan 2050, intend that it will provide such a 
framework to protect and enhance the environment and 

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 11



Appendix 1 
 

factored in to the Oxon Plan 2050 Green Belt 
review. 

ensure that it reflects the NPPF policies on Green Belt, and 
the need to protect the AONB and the wider countryside.  

 

 
Recommendation 4: That the Growth Board take a 
holistic view in mitigating climate change and 
preservation of the Green Belt by adding Carbon 
Sequestration, Zero Carbon Strategies and 
Reforestation as part of the environmental 
infrastructure in local plans and the Oxon Plan 2050. 
 

 
Agree 

 
The Growth Board recognises that the Oxfordshire Plan 
2050 will also provide an appropriate framework to plan for 
both resilience to climate change, and help us move to an 
ultra-low-carbon economy. 
The City and District Councils, as the Local Planning 
Authorities, intend that climate change issues will be 
considered as part of responses to the consultation on the 
Oxfordshire Plan 2050. 
 

 
Recommendation 5: That the Growth Board have a 
clear work programme. In addition, items on the 
Growth Board agenda should be concise and 
substantial and also be supported by 
reports/information on all items which are published 
along with the substantive agenda. This includes 
update notes from the three advisory Sub-Groups 
ensuring that the reports are produced well in 
advance of the Scrutiny Panel meeting and that the 
Growth Board minutes including any written 
responses to public questions. 
 

 
Agree  

 
The Scrutiny Panel will have noted from previous agendas 
that the Growth Board has a Forward Plan that sets out the 
key considerations and decisions of future meetings. The 
Board does agree however that this could be further 
developed into a more comprehensive work programme 
and will ask officers to produce a report for consideration. 
 
The Panel’s comments on the format of the agenda are 
noted and broadly agreed.  Presentations and verbal 
updates will sometimes be appropriate, but the Board will 
seek to provide more information about the item on the 
agenda papers where it can, and notes from the sub 
groups will be produced in advance of the Scrutiny Panel 
wherever possible. 
 

 
Recommendation 6: That the Growth Board outline 
the rationale of the process/protocol being followed 
for the appointment of Chairman and Vice-Chairman 
to the Growth Board for 2019/2020 
 

 
Agree 

 
The Board anticipates that the information being sought by 
the scrutiny panel will emerge as part of the discussions at 
the meeting. 

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 11



Appendix 1 
 

 
Recommendation 7: That the Growth Board 
provide background information on Ox-Cam Arc 
Executive Committee and the role of the 
representative to the Committee including basis of 
appointment. 
 

 
 
Agree 

 

The Board anticipates that the information being sought by 
the scrutiny panel will be clarified before an appointment is 
made. 

 
Recommendation 8: That the Growth Board revisit 
the recommendation on structured communication 
between the Growth Board and council’s members 
considering member reports of having received 
incorrect and incomplete information. 
 

 

Unable to 
agree, see 
comments 

 
This is a matter for each leader within their own authority. 
 

 

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 11



 

1 

 
 

 
 
Growth Board Scrutiny Panel Work Plan  

 
The Growth Board Scrutiny Panel agrees its own Work Plan, which is reviewed at each meeting. The Panel is encouraged to be strict in 
prioritising key issues for review, in addition to the entirety of the Growth Board’s forthcoming agendas, which will feature as a standard item 
on the Work Plan. The Panel’s ongoing review of their work plan should be considered in conjunction with the Growth Board’s Forward Plan. 
 

Meeting date Item Description and rationale Contact 

 
 
 
25 July 2019 

The Local 
Industrial 
Strategy  
 

 
Consideration of a report concerning the Local Industrial Strategy. 

Ahmed 
Goga 
(OxLEP) 

 
Oxfordshire 
Energy Strategy 
Delivery Plan 

 
 
To consider the delivery Plan developed from the Oxfordshire Energy Strategy 

 
Ahmed 
Goga 
(OxLEP) 
 

Growth Board 
Agenda  

 

To consider the Growth Board’s agenda, and any items for discussion.  N/a  

Growth Board 
Sub Groups 

To consider the work of the Growth Board sub groups N/a 

 
Items to be considered for inclusion in the work plan 

Item Description and rationale 
Lead 
Officer 

Strengthening social 
value and 
Environmental 
Capital 

To consider to what extent the Growth Board is taking account of, measuring and then extracting social value in 
the growth agenda. Also, to consider the strategic approach to maximising the utility of environmental capital. 

 
TBC 

  

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 13



 

2 

Health Services 
Provision  
  

To consider the extent the Growth Board is taking account of future NHS provision, (GP surgeries, hospitals) in 
response to growth  

TBC 

Green Transport 
and safety (Cycle 
routes) vision in 
Oxford Plan 2050 

To consider the strategy of the Growth Board in respect of sustainable transport   TBC  

 

P
age 34

A
genda Item

 13


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the previous meeting
	7 Oxfordshire's Affordable Housing Potential - secured through planning policy
	8 Oxfordshire Green Belt Update
	9 Growth Deal Infrastructure Programme
	10 Response to Scrutiny Panel request in relation to air quality and climate change in the Oxfordshire Plan 2050
	11 Growth Board response to Growth Board Scrutiny Panel recommendations - March 2019 Meeting
	13 Work Programme for the Scrutiny Panel - May 2019



